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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND OHIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The South Ward School is a large two story, Victorian eclectic brick building
with hipped roof, protruding front tower and exposed basement. It was built in
1887 by Bellefonte's popular "Architect” - Contractor Robert Cole.

" The outward appearance of the structure has been changed very little over the
years. The dimensions of the foundation are approximately 50 x 100 feet. A
tower protrudes from the facade and two chimneys protrude from the side
elevations. The rear elevation has-a one story vestibule protruding from the
wall. The limestone foundation has window openings on all sides. Cellar windows
are capped with segmental arches in brick that merge into the wall above.

Each elevation eonforms to a striect symmetry on side elevations, for example,
fourteen windows for each floor are divided at the center by the chinmeys. Walls
that would otherwise be quite dull are enlivened by three decorative string
courses that continue around the building. A simple straight band divides the
upper and lower elevations and continues uninterrupted around the building and
all protrusions. In a similar fashion all the windows and door frames on the first
and second stories are tied together, lintel to lintel, with this decorative banding.
Further interest is added by the faet that the first floor window lintels are
treated with a low stilted segmental arch whilst the upper floor has a straight
sided roman arch. The walls are common bond between the corbeled cornice and
slightly flared foot.

The chimneys (the one on the west wall has now been truncated at the roof eve)
are identical with decorated brickwork above the roof eves.

Originally the chimneys were only built to the first band of echimney corbels and
dressed there with a brick hood. Additional height was added at a later date ( at
least on the east wall chimney ) in the same style brickwork with a second
corbeling and finished with a hood.

The hip roof is unchanged except for the dormers that have been removed and
replaced by a large modern ventilator in the center of the ridge pole and two
smaller ventilators on the hip ridges. The roof dormers on the East and West
elevations were hipped and had three windows. Two small dormers were located
on either side of the tower. All dormers were ornamented with finials.

The tower is the building's most imposing feature and houses a school bell. Its
lower portion contains the vestibule. The tower has a hipped roof more steeply
pitched than the main roof from which rises the bell tower proper. The bell
tower itself is square in plan. The four sides of the tower are louvered in a
palladian pattern. The tower roof is a steep hip which once possessed four small
hooded dormer vents and a railing with finials at the peak.

The treatment of the window heads and the overall symmetry identify the
building's basic style as High Vietorian Italianate. However, the dormers, tower,
. and chimney detailing appear to have a distinet Queen Anne influence.
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The interior arrangement had four classrooms on each floor with a central
hallway between. The newspaper articles at the time the school was built
indicate that an effort was made to provide the latest engineering in the heating
and ventilation systems (Democratic Watchman, 1887).

Modernizations and alterations after World War II have not seriously affected
the exterior appearance. On the interior, we find the second floor essentially
unaltered, some cloakrooms were added in the 1950's, while the first floor has
seen changes to accomodate recent uses. The building served for a time as the
Borough Hall and now operates as a Youth/Community Center.

Although the building is structurally sound as it stands today, immediate
preservation attention is required to halt accelerated deterioration. Roof repair
and window installation are serious needs.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The South Ward School (1887) obtains significance in terms of architecture,
education and as a scenic landmark of great importance to the Bellefonte streetscape.
Architecturally, the building represents a class of High Vietorian publie school buildings
which has been diminished over the years by consolidation, abandonment, and
destruction. Robert Cole (1850-1916), the building's designer, was a popular self-trained
local architeet whose work contributed immensely to the lasting picturesque atmosphere
of the town.

Amongst standing examplés of his work in Bellefonte are the Crider Exchange
Bloek, the old Logan Fire Hall, Temple Court, Petrikin Hall, the Bellefonte Academy and
numerous residences. 4

The South Ward School displays an accomédation of late Victorian Italianate and
Queen Anne design to the functional requirements of a large institutional building. The
bold profile of the building, and its elevated site combine to express the inereasing
importance of education in the community.

The South Ward School is significant in the expanding school system of Bellefonte
and is also the oldest standing public school building in the borough. The history of public
education in Bellefonte begins in 1834 when the Act requiring public schools was passed
by the State Legislature. Although a large nine room school was constructed on Linn and
Allegheny Streets in 1865, by 1886 the school age population had exceeded the capacity
of this building. The decision was made to build a new school and to place it on a lot on
Bishop Street.

The school was designed to house both the lower grades and the High School whieh
had in many years as few as five students. Many high school students, those preparing -
for college especially, went to private schools like the Bellefonte Academy at the west
end of Bishop Street. The South Ward School served as both a high and lower school until
a High School was built in 1911, By all aceounts the building served its purpose well and
remained in use until thel960's. -
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